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ADDENDUM NO. 5 

NEW CREAMERY ROAD SEWAGE PUMP STATION 

CONTRACT NO. 001 

 

 

A second site visit was conducted for the New Creamery Road Sewage Pump Station on March 6, 

2023 at 11:00 AM, at the pumping station located at 17700 Creamery Road, Emmitsburg, Maryland.  

No questions were addressed at the meeting.  The Engineer was not in attendance.  Attendees are 

listed on the attached sign-in sheet. 

 

 

Questions from Bidders 

 

The following questions were asked via e-mail.  The questions (shown in italics) and answers 

(shown in bold), as presented, are hereby made part of the Contract Documents. 

 

1. Please extend the bid date by at least one or two weeks. 

 

The bid date is not being extended. 

 
2. Plan Sheet C2 shows the locations of Test Bores 505, 508, I1, I2, SWM 1.   However, in the 

project manual we can only find Boring Logs for Borings B1 & B2.  Please clarify the location 

on site of Borings B1 & B2, and also provide bore logs and soils information for all test 

pits/borings shown on plan sheet C2. 

 

All test bores labeled 505 and 508 shall refer to Borings B-1 and B-2, respectively.  See 

attached revised Sheet C2 and SWM-1.  Bore logs/soils information for SWM-1 is 

attached.  Infiltration rates for Borings I-1 and I-2 are also attached. 

 

3. There are Overhead Electric Transmission / Communication Lines present near the proposed 

PRECAST CONCRETE BLDG & the proposed VALVE VAULT.  It appears that the temporary 

electrical service that is proposed on Plan Sheet E2 will only replace the existing Pump Station 

service line. This will leave the Overhead Electric Transmission / Communication Lines in 

conflict with the install of PRECAST CONCRETE BLDG & VALVE VAULT.  Will the Power 

Company be responsible for protecting, lifting or relocating these lines during precast 

install/crane operations in this area? 

 

The Contractor is responsible for coordinating with the power company for line 

protection/insulation or other measures.  The Contractor shall ensure that work that is 

performed near overhead lines is performed in accordance with Potomac Edison 

requirements and the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.  The Contractor shall be responsible 

for all costs and fees required by Potomac Edison to provide and perform protective 

measures, such as insulating the lines. Rectangular precast vaults with an interior width 

dimension greater than 6’-0” or interior length dimension greater than 12’-0” may be 

cast-in-place, provided the design is in accordance with the Contract Documents and 

Specification Section 03410.   

 



2  of  7 

4. Are WBE/MBE solicitations a requirement of this project? 

 

The Contractor is required to solicit for Small, Minority, and Women’s Businesses in 

accordance with the Bid Documents; however, there is no required MBE Participation 

Percentage. 

 

5. Article 21 of the Instruction to bidders states that this bid should not include Maryland State 

Sales Tax on Materials and Equipment. However, the following website, 

https://www.marylandtaxes.gov/business/sales-use/tax-exemptions/, states that the project is 

not tax exempt. Please see description below and clarify. 

 

A contractor may use an organization's exemption certificate to purchase materials that 

will be used to construct, improve, alter or repair the real property of private, nonprofit 

charitable, educational, and religious organizations; volunteer fire companies and rescue 

squads; and nonprofit cemeteries. The materials must be incorporated into the realty to 

qualify for the exemption. Sales of materials used to improve the realty of government 

entities, credit unions and veterans organizations are taxable, and their certificates may 

not be used by contractors. 

 

A contractor may use an exemption certificate from a nonprofit organization if the first 

two digits of its exemption number are:29 (religious organizations),31 (charitable and 

educational organizations), or 33 (volunteer fire departments, rescue squads and 

ambulance companies), Purchases made by using the following charge cards are subject 

to the Maryland sales and use tax since they are billed directly to the individual and are 

not treated as direct sales to the federal government:30 (government agencies), or32 

(credit unions), or 34 (veterans organizations). 

 

Contractors cannot use the Town’s exemption to purchase materials for the project 

without paying these taxes.  Refer to EJCDC C-800 Supplementary Conditions 

Paragraph 7.10 whereby the Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other 

similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and 

Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of 

the Work. 

 

6. With regards to the UAV Liability Insurance listed in the Supplementary Conditions under 

Article 6, our insurance company will not cover UAC Liability Insurance invasion of privacy. 

Is this acceptable? 

 

UAVs shall not be permitted to be used; therefore, UAV insurance is not required. 

 
7. What is the start date of this project? 

 
The Bid shall remain subject to acceptance for 90 days after the Bid opening, or for such 

longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request from the Owner 

in accordance with EJCDC C-410 Bid Form, Article 7.  The anticipated start date will be 

determined following Bid acceptance. 
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8. What unit prices are to be inserted into the unit price table at the bottom of page 30 of 807? 

 
There are no unit prices required to be included in the unit price table.  This is a lump 

sum bid. 

 
9. When was the pump station built? 

 
The pump station was built during the timeframe between 1986 and 1990. 

 
10. Does anything need done with the existing Settling Tank shown on plan sheet C2? 

 

The Contractor shall consider the information provided on Sheet C2 regarding the 

existing settling tank and impacts on construction and include all associated costs within 

the bid to complete construction.  Note that the settling tank has not been used as a 

settling tank since the pump station was built between 1986 and 1990. 

 
11. Does anything need done with the existing Drying Bed shown on plan sheet C2? 

 
The Contractor shall consider the information provided on Sheet C2 regarding the 

existing drying bed and impacts on construction and include all associated costs within 

the bid to complete construction.  Note that the drying bed has not been used as a drying 

bed since the pump station was built between 1986 and 1990. 

 
12. There are several Sections in the specs that say to include certified engineering plans, please 

confirm contractor is responsible to provide these certified engineering plans:  Section 02240 

Dewatering, Section 02260 Excavation Support & Protection, Section 02750 Temporary 

Bypass Pumping Systems, Section 03300 Cast-In-Place Concrete.  There are other Sections 

which say to include drawings (but do not say certified engineer); please confirm contractor is 

responsible to provide these non-certified drawings: Sanitary Sewers 02530, Base-Mounted 

Pumping System 11310, Sump Pump 11350, Hangers and Supports  15060, Piping  15100, 

Valves  15110, Plumbing  15400, Heating and Ventilation Equipment  15500,  Mini-Split Heat 

Pump Air Conditioning System  15700. 

 

Yes, it is confirmed that the Contractor is responsible to meet the requirements of the 

specifications to provide detailed fabrication and installation drawings certified by a 

Professional Engineer, complete design calculations certified by a Professional Engineer, 

and any layout drawings not requiring a PE certification in accordance with the 

specifications or drawings. 

 

13. The supplementary conditions call for $10MM umbrella policy. If the engineers estimate is  

$3-4MM why is this limit so high. Please reduce these limits accordingly.  

 

The umbrella policy limits listed under EJCDC C-800 Supplementary Conditions 

Paragraphs 6.03.K and L are hereby revised to replace the limits of not less than 

$10,000,000 to umbrella policy limits of not less than $5,500,000. 
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14. Please confirm Railroad Insurance is not required. 

 

There is no work within 50 feet of railroad-owned and controlled property; therefore, 

Railroad Insurance is not required. 

 
15. Please confirm Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV) insurance is not required. 

 

UAVs shall not be permitted to be used; therefore, UAV insurance is not required. 

 

16. We are requesting exemptions for the following requirements as they do not pertain to the 

work or seem in excess of the size and scope of the project.  SPECS Article 6-Bonds and 

Insurance, SC-6.03  

 

E. Workers Comp-Longshoreman policy; 

G. #7-Design Profession additional insured; 

H. #7-Professional liability; 

J.  Our auto liability is $1M combined limit; 

K. We carry $5M limit; 

M. We do not have Pollution coverage; 

N.  We do not have Profession liability insurance; 

O. We do not have Railroad Protective liability coverage; 

P. We do not have Unmanned Aerial Vehicle coverage. 

 

SC-6.04 

F. We do not carry Builder’s Risk coverage (doesn’t apply). 

 

The Town will not provide exemptions for the insurance requirements.  However, due to the 

nature of the project, the following policies are not applicable and therefore not required:  

(1) Longshoreman policy; (2) Railroad Protective Liability; (3) Unmanned Aerial Vehicle 

Coverage.  Further, as discussed above, the umbrella policy limits shall be adjusted to 

$5,500,000.  All other referenced coverages are required. 

 

17. Is the wet well the only item which gets the Corrosion Protection Lining System?  If not, what 

other items get it? 

 

All wetwell interior concrete surfaces shall be coated with a corrosion protection lining 

system in accordance with Specification Section 09960 per Sheet M7, Note 2. No other 

surfaces are required to be coated with the Corrosion Protection Lining System. 

 

18. Plan Sheet C7 details the replacement of two (2) ARV’s that are located offsite.  How will 

contractor access these locations?  Is there an established ROW?  Will clearing or grading be 

required to access these locations? 

 

Access is provided via the existing utility easement shown on Sheet C7.  No grading will 

be required.  Clearing of brush and debris may be required for access. 
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19. Specification section 16230 page 1 item 1.01.A.1 states “Furnish a complete natural gas 

emergency generator system…”  Can you provide a specification for the natural gas piping 

system?  Can you provide sketches showing sizing and layout of the piping?  Can you provide 

details showing any necessary accessories for equipment connections? 

 

A specification, sketches showing pipe sizing and layout, and details for accessories for 

connections will not be provided.  The natural gas piping shall meet the requirements of 

Frederick County, MD; UGI; and the International Fuel Gas Code, latest edition adopted 

by Frederick County.  Size of the gas service/natural gas pipe size shall be suitable for the 

generator furnished. Layout and details for equipment selection shall be determined by 

the Contractor based upon the requirements of UGI; the International Fuel Gas Code; 

and Frederick County based upon the generator furnished.  Meter yoke shall be set per 

UGI requirements for height and spacing of the unions to connect the meter.  Exposed 

piping shall be threaded black steel pipe meeting the requirements of the International 

Fuel Gas Code and coated yellow.  Contractor shall submit the gas piping layout to the 

Engineer for approval.  The Contractor shall apply for a permit to Frederick County, 

Maryland by a master plumber for the gas piping with inspection required prior to 

connecting.  All Frederick County permit requirements shall be met by the Contractor, 

including all associated fees.  See Note 17, Sheet C3 for additional information.   

 

20. Plan Sheet C3 shows the LOD for the project extending across Creamery Road for the 

connection to the Existing Gas Line (See Note 17) .  Please clarify if Contractor will be 

responsible for Traffic Control, Trenching, Backfill & HMA Paving Restoration across 

Creamery Road. 

 

Yes, the Contractor is responsible for Traffic Control, Trenching, Backfill and HMA 

Paving Restoration across Creamery Road.  Contractor shall be responsible to coordinate 

with UGI for the installation of the gas line across Creamery Road and for trenching and 

backfill requirements for the gas line. 

 
21. Addendum One thru Four have been issued. However, there are no dates listed on each 

addendum to put on the Bid Form. What dates would you like us to use? 

 

Use the following dates for the Addenda: 

Addendum 1, February 7, 2023. 

Addendum 2, February 17, 2023. 

Addendum 3, February 28, 2023. 

Addendum 4, March 1, 2023. 

Addendum 5, March 9, 2023. 

 

22. Plan Sheet E2.  Please provide the detail for the power company transformer pad referenced 

on Sheet E2, Note 2. 

 

See attached standard detail for the power company transformer pad.  The transformer 

pad shall be constructed in accordance with Potomac Edison requirements.  Contractor 

shall coordinate with Potomac Edison for the transformer pad. 
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23. Article 13 of Project Manual, Article 13 - Basis of Bid, section 13.01 states bidders must 

submit a bid based on a lump sum basis however, section 13.05 states that bidders must submit 

a bid on a unit price basis for each item of work listed in the unit price section of the bid form.  

The bid form does not show any bid items. Please clarify what the unit price items are intended 

to be for this project. 

 

There are no unit prices to include on the bid form.  The Basis of Bid shall be lump sum.  

The unit prices should be blank. 

 

24. Plan Sheet C3 Please provide a paving restoration detail for the gas line utility patch on 

Creamery Road. 

 

Contractor shall refer to the Frederick County Utility Trench Backfill/Pavement Repair 

Detail #1 for Bituminous Concrete Roadways for the pavement restoration on Creamery 

Road.  Detail attached. 

 
25. Spec 03300, Specification section 03300-3.22(C) requires that structures which are designed 

to contain liquid be tested for leakage.  The spec only references a water test.  Will an air test 

be acceptable to verify the acceptability of the structure? 

 

An air test is not acceptable.  Testing shall be in accordance with Specification Section 

03300. 

 

26. Plans, SWM3, Regarding the bioretention facility shown on sheet SWM3, does the 

impermeable liner go inside the bioretention facility on the sides and bottom or is this liner 

meant for the 57 stone outlet trench?  Also, please confirm the bioretention soil mixture type 

since it is shown on two tables on this sheet.  Is it MDE B.4.1 (Top Table) or SHA Bioretention 

Soil Mix? 

 

The impermeable liner is installed only on the bioretention facility sides and bottom in 

accordance with the material specifications for bioretention. The bioretention soil 

mixture type shall be in accordance with MDE Table B.4.1.  

 

27. Regarding addendum #4, question & answer #3 leak testing: Please confirm if leak test is 

required before or after the interior and exterior lining/waterproofing.  Concrete is susceptible 

to cracking and most of the time will have leaks until it is waterproofed so please provide 

further clarification. Please confirm if this structure is considered a Surcharged Containment 

Structure and therefor will need to follow Surcharged leak testing. 

 

Concrete is to be leak tested prior to any interior or exterior 

coatings/lining/waterproofing.  Structure is not a Surcharged Containment Structure.  

Hydrostatic testing, HST-100, is applicable to this project. (ACI 350.1-01). 
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28. What is the average daily flow at the pump station (not the max flow 3300 gpm)? 

 

To provide additional information to the response to Question 3 in Addendum 3 

regarding the average daily flow at the pump station, currently, there is a flow meter that 

sends a 4-20ma signal to an old chart recorder with a totalizer. Based on the chart 

recorder, the average daily flow was 432,738 GPD during 2022.  The average daily flow 

was 465,777 GPD during January 2023.  The pump station discharge is pumped to the 

Town of Emmitsburg Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  The average daily flow at 

the WWTP is 0.75 MGD and the WWTP peak hourly flow is 5.64 MGD.  Note that the 

bypass pumping system shall be capable of bypassing the flow around the work area and 

of releasing any amount of flow up to full available flow into the work area as necessary 

for satisfactory performances of work in accordance with Specification Section 02750. 
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3"

18"
6"

18 " 18 "

10.  COMPACTION SHALL BE 92% OF MAXIMUN DENSITY BASED UPON AASHTO T-180 Method “C” EXCEPT FOR THE TOP ONE FOOT (1)’OF THE 
ROADWAY WHICH SHALL BE 97% OF THE MAXIMUN DRY DENSITY BASED UPON AASHTO T-180 Method “C”. 

7.    THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO APPLY FOR AND OBTAIN A "CONSTRUCTION/UTILITY WORK IN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY" PERMIT
8.    ENSURE THAT ALL TRENCH BACKFILL, ETC. IS SPECIFIED TO COMPLY WITH THE CONDITIONS OF THIS PERMIT
9.    REFER TO "PAVEMENT RESTORATION SPECIFICATIONS & DETAILS" AND "OVERLAY" SPECIFICATIONS FOR MORE DETAILS

UTILITY TRENCH BACKFILL/PAVEMENT REPAIR DETAIL #1
BITUMINOUS CONCRETE ROADWAYS

(NOT TO SCALE)

5.    EXISTING PAVEMENT EDGES TO BE SAW CUT
6.    ALL VERTICAL EDGES OF THE REPAIR AREA SHALL BE TACKED BEFORE PLACEMENT OF THE SURFACE COURSE

3.    BASE COURSE AND AT LEAST ONE SURFACE COURSE LAYER TO BE DONE IN SAME DAY, OR FLUSH WITH EXISTING ROADWAY
4.    FINAL SURFACE COURSE LAYER SHALL BE DONE WITHIN 5 CALENDAR DAYS OF THE INITIAL SURFACE COURSE

EXISTING BASE COURSE (VARIES)

6" BASE COURSE (COMPACTED) 25 MM SUPERPAVE       
(IN TWO 3" LIFTS)

EXISTING BASE COURSE (VARIES)

GRADED AGGREGATE BASE FULL TRENCH DEPTH 
COMPACTED IN 8" LIFTS USING AASHTO T-180 

METHOD "C"

TRENCH WIDTH (VARIES)

1.     BASE COURSE TO EXTEND 18" BEYOND TRENCH CUT ON BOTH SIDES
2.    SURFACE COURSE TO EXTEND 18" BEYOND BASE COURSE ON BOTH SIDES

2 LIFTS OF 1.5" SURFACE COURSE 12.5 MM SUPERPAVE

EXISTING ROAD SURFACE (VARIES)

BASE

SAW CUT & TACK COAT EDGES (TYP)


